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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORY

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
("the Parent™), its subsidiaries and Limited ULability Partnership Firm (the Parent, its subsidiaries
and Limited Liability Partnership Firm together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other expianatory information (herein referred to as “the consolidated

financia; staternents”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
hased on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership referred to in the Other Matters saction below, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS') and other accounting pririciples
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021,
and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash
flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters section below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Emphasis on Matter

Attention is invited to Note 31 of the consolidated financial statements, which sets out the Group’s
assessment of impact of COVID-19 pandemic situation, the uncertainties associated therewith on
its financial statements and going concern assumption. Based on these assessments, the
management has concluded that the Group will continue as a going concern and will be able to meet
all of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

o The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

s Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

- In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries and Limited
Liability Partnership audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other
information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership, is traced from
their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
faif view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. '

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 6 subsidiaries and 1 Limited Liability Partnership Firm
(*LLP") (as mentioned below), whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 109,127.34
lacs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 3829.62 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to
Rs. 486.30 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and LLP, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and LLP is based solely on the reports of the other

auditors.

Subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm included in consolidated financial
statements and not audited by us are as below:

A. Subsidiaries -
i. Celsia Hoteis Private Limited
2. Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited




Deloitte
Haslkins & Sells LLP

lora Hotels Private Limited
Ophrys Hotels Private Limited
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

Ul D W

[o)

B. Limited liability partnership firm -
1. Mezereon Hotels LLP

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and LLP
incorporated in India referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent

applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those

COmdeIES.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent has paid no
remuneration to its directors during the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer Note 34)

i) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts. (Refer Note 34)

iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India. (Refer Note 46)

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

Vijay Agarwal
(Partner)

\/ (Membership No. 094468)
¥ (UDIN: 21094468AAAAFE3343)

Place. Gurugram
Date: June 15, 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Managemeni’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL)".
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.
Auditor’'s Raesponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in
the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent and its

subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 6 subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies

incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For Deloitie Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

Vijay Agarwal
(Partner)

(Membership No. 094468)
(UDIN: 21094468AAAAFE3343)

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 15, 2021




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Note No, As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipient 3 214,876.45 221,145.94
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 23,864.61 18,791.40
(c) Intangible assets 5 181,43 248.87
(d) Goodwill on consolidation 5 25,054.36 25,054.37
(e) Right to use asset 6 37,706.27 39,964.68
() Financial assets 7
(i) Investments 0.41 0.30
(i) Other financial assets 6,038.66 5,522.56
(g) Non-current tax assets (net) 8.1 1,209.10 1,849.13
(h) Other non-current assets 8.2 640,46 335.79
309,571.75 312,913.04
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 483.29 529,23
(b) Financial assets 10
(i) Trade receivables 1,986.63 5,075.29
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 8,613,96 2,577.84
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 1,368.50 -
(iv) Other financial assets 1,198.40 977.75
(c) Other current assets 1 1,533.68 1,522.50
15,184.46 10,682.61
Total Assels 324,756.21 323,595.65
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Share capital i2 8,289.77 8,289.77
(b) Other Equity 13 145,338.80 141,399.22
Total Equity 153,628.57 149,688.99
Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
(a) Financial Habilities 14
(i) Borrowings 111,448.08 109,669.32
(ii) Other financial liabilities 649,21 576.56
(b) Provisions 15 108.31 67.86
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 369.58 2,278.12
(d) Lease liability 17 32,358.56 31,942.48
(e) Other non-current liabilities 18 1,978.32 2,119.63
146,912,06 146,653.97
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities 19
(i) Borrowings 3,746.84 6,906.03
(ii) Trade payables - -
- total ontstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 199.52 144.91
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 8,195.67 7,841.99
and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilitics 10,563.02 10,545.23
(b) Other current liabilities 20 1,258.15 1,585.54
(¢) Provisions 15 252.38 228.99
24,215.58 27,252.69
Total Liabilities 171,127.64 173,906.66
Total Equity and Liabilities 324,756.21 323,595.65
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. [ to 46

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants ‘
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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G Partner Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
2 DIN-00002974

Place ; New Delhi
Date : June 15, 2021

Place : Gurugram
Date : June 15, 2021




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
, March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Note No, Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 21 17,579.86 40,086.20
Other Income 22 1,362.80 628.53
Total Income (I) 18,942.66 40,714.73
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 23 1,260.15 3,608.40
Employee benefits expense 24 4,011.69 8,021.91
Other expenses 25 1,708.73 15,057.88
Total Expenses (1I) 12,980.57 26,688.19
Earnings before inferest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 5,962.09 14,026.54
(EBITDA) (I-1)
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 8,329.31 6,632.9]
Finance costs 27 13,665.26 10,808.55
Finance icome 28 (624.46) (369.53)
(Loss)/Profit before tax (15,408.02) (3,045.39)
Tax (Credit)/expense: 16 .
(1) Current tax (MAT) 0.17 203.67
(2) MAT Credit Entitlement - 4.05
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 11.78 8.13
(3) Deferred tax (Credit)/expense (1,908.69) (160.81)

(1,896.74) 55.04
(Loss)/Profit for the year (13,511.28) (3,100.43)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (23.94) (8.17)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - (0.06)
(23.94) (8.23)

Total Comprehensive (loss)/Income for the year (13,535.22) (3,108.66)
(Loss)/Profit lor the year (13,511.28) (3,100.43)
Attributable to:

Equity helders of the parent (13,511.28) (3,100.43)
Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (13,535.22) (3,108.66)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (13,535.22) (3,108.66)
Non-controlling interests - -
(Loss)/Earnings per equity share

(1) Basic 29 (21.66) 497
(2) Diluted 29 (21.66) 4.97)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, [ to 46
As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Fleur Hotfls Private Limited

o
ARN S A e (=
Vijay A"gjur\:'al Patanjali G. Keswani Inder Pal Batra Sonali Manchanda

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Ofticer Company Secretary
DIN-00002974

Place : Gurugram Place : New Delhi
Date : June 15, 2021 Date : June 15, 2021




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended March 31,2021

For the year ended
March 31,2021
(Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
(Rs in lakhs)

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax (15,408.02) (3,045.39)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,329.31 6,381.20
Waiver of rent (824.69)

Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (585.35) (154.91)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 13,569.04 10,544.64
Provision for gratuity 22.42 38.40
Provision for leave encashment 4.39 54.97
Excess provision/ credit balances written back - 043)
Provision for litigation 13.10 13.10
Provision for doubtful debts 96.04 266.85
Net gain on sale of property, plant & equipment - 1.44
Net gain on sale of current investments (0.40) (214.58)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 5,215.84 13,885.29
Movements in working capital:

(Increase) in trade receivables 2,992.62 (2,183.43)
(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other current assets (803.28) (418.47)
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 45.94 (126.28)
Increase in liabilities and provisions (1,409.36) (760.62)
Cash Generated from Operations 5,981.76 10,396.49
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 628.23 876.05
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 6,609.99 11,272.54
Cash flows used in investing activities

Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP, capital advances and capital creditors (6,768.34) (68,074.74)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment - 1,128.28
Purchase of investment in subsidiary companies (including impact of fair value changes in loan to 0.11) (0.30)
subsidiaries)

Proceeds from sale of current investment(net) 0.40 (457.46)
Other Bank balances (1,368.50) -
Interest received 585.35 245.59
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (7,551.20) (67,158.63)
Cash flows from financing activities*®

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 17,474.80 42,035.64
Payment of Lease liability (1,825.99) (2,061.53)
Proceeds from Minority - 600.04
Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net) 998.89 22,837.57
Repayment of short term borrowings (3,159.18) 783.06
Interest paid (6,511.19) (8,213.50)
Net Cash from financing activities (C) 6,977.33 55,981.28

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs in Iakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) k 6,036.12 95.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,577.84 1,137.71
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on account of amalgamation - 346.51
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on inclusion of new subsidiary - 998.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ' 8,613.96 2,571.84
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 2645 43.35
Balances with Scheduled Banks in

- Current accounts 1,803.51 2,354.51

- Deposits with original maturity of fess than three months 6,784.00 179.98
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,613.96 2,577.84

#The above statement does not include assets and liabitities transferred from Meringue Hotels Private Limited to the Company under the Scheme of Arrangement

(Refer note 40)
* There are no non-cash changes arising from financing activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

-

45 S RN
A AN &k;g&}
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Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Y g T
Vijay Agarwal Patanjali G. Keswani Inder Pal Batra
| Partner Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN-00002974

Place : Guragram
Date : June 15, 2021

éi)}fdli Manchanda
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 15,2021
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Flenr Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended Muarch 31, 2021

+4, Capital work-in-progress

Asat
March 31, 2021
{Rs in lukhs)

As at
March 31,2020
(Rs in lakhs)

Hotel at Udaipur

Material 47549 14,818.99
Professional charges 294402
Borrowing cost - 1,527.46
Salary, Wapes & Bonus 12,53 24238
Project stalt expenses other then salary 247 17545
Travelhng - 27.88
Rates and taxes - 46.89
Others - 0.26
Less Capitalised during the year (877.73) (19,437.09)
- 346.24

Hotel ot MIAL Acrocity

Materal 8,134.07 S.615.14
Professionad charges 4,968.05 4,917.86
Borrowing cost 75.72 43.37
[ease remt 7,106.32 5,934.79
Salary. wages & honus 268.25 210.20
Project staft expenses other then salary 213.24 157.06
Travelling 35,01 34.00
Rates and taxes 3,007.98 1,482.17
hers 53.22 47.82

23,861.86 18,442.41

Waork n progiess at eorporate office 2.75 2,78
Total 23,8604.01 18,791.40




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended RMarch 31,2021

S. Intangible Assels

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Toatal Goodwiil on
Software Licenses Brand Cousolidation
(Refer note 44)

Gross Carrying amount

Asat April 1,2019 208.05 208.03 9,332.39
Additiens 155.73 155.73 -
Additions on inclusion of new subsidiary (Refer Note 41) 1.900.00 100.00 2.000.00 15772194
Acquired on Amalgamation (Refer Note 40) 34.02 54.02 0.08
Disposals - 1,900.00 100,00 2,000.00 -
As at March 31,2020 417.80 - - 417.81 25,054.41
Additions 0.63 0.63 -
As at March 31, 2621 418.43 - - 418.44 25,084.41
Amortisation

Asat April 1,2019 75.73 75.73 -
Amorlisation 52,63 52.63 -
Acquired on \j ion (Refer Note 40) 40.58 40.58 0.04
As ot March 31, 2020 168.94 - - 168.94 0.04
Amortisalion 68,06 68.06 0.01
As at March 31, 2021 237.00 - - 237.00 0.05
Net Block

As at March 31,2021 181.43 - - 181.43 25,054.36
As at March 31, 2020 248.86 - - 248.87 25,054.37
Net book vafue As at As nt

March 31,2021 hasch 31, 2020
181.43 248.87

Intangible assets

6. Right to use asset

Rs. inlakhs

Particulars Total

Balance as at April 01, 2019 23,070.62
Additions during the year 18,275.52
Disposals during the year -
Amortisation during the year (apportioned in P&L) 1,188.42
A isation during the vear (Capillised during the year) 193.04
Balance as nf March 31, 20204 39,964.68
Disposals during the year 51.09
Amontisation during the vear (apportioned in P&L) 1,285,37
Amortisation during the vear (Capitlised during the year) 921.98
Balance as af March 31,2021 37,706.24

*Includes an amount of Rs, 16,662.93 fakhs reclassified from prepaid rent (earlier classified in other non current assets and other current assets) to Right of use assets, ns on April 1, 2020 and

corresponding previous vear balance has been reclassified accordingly.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidited financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

% Financial assets As al

March 31,2021

(i) Iuvestments
Tnvestments at fair value through Profit & Loss
4,109 (Previous Year. 3,03 1) equity shares of §

mergy Private

Asat

March 31,2020

Limtted of Rs. 10 cuch fully puid 0,41 030
041 0.30

wrepate book value/market vatue of quoted mvestments - -
0.30

rate book value of unquoted investments 041

As ot
Muarch 31, 2021

As al

Neh 31,2020

{it} Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Seeurity deposits at amortised cost 4,818.53 444913
Interest acerued on depostts with banks 440.38 41041
Fixed deposits under lren® 779.75 663,02
Total 6,038.66 5.522.56

Fixed deposits under e meludes deposits Lien marked with banks against guarantees

fssued m favour of varnous Government depantiments

(Thes space hay beew intentronally feft blank)




Flewr Hotels Private Limited

Notes (o Consolidated financial statenrents for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

8.1 Nov-current tax assets (net)

Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)

Total

82 Other non-current assets

Capital Advances

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Reserve for straightiining of rent recevable
Total

Asat
March 31, 2021
Rs in lnkhs

Asat
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

1,209.10 1,849.13
1,209.10 1.849.13
As at Asat

Muarch 31,2021
Rs in lnkhs

March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

360.95 171.64

59,53 48.81
219,98 115.34
640,46 335,79

(This space has been mtentionally lefi blunk)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the yeur ended March 31, 2021
9 Invenlorics As As at
(valned at tower of cost and net realisable value) March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 81.70 134.85
Liquor and wine 102,15 105.23
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 299.44 289.15

483,29 529.23

Total

Refer footnote to Note H o oventores pledged

(s space has been mientroncally left hlank)




Fleur

Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

10 Financial assels As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Trade receivables
Frade receivables o 1,986.63 507529
1,986.63 5,075.29
Break-up for security details:
Secured, considered good
Secured, considered doubtiul
Unsecured, considered good 1,986.63 5,075.29
Doubtiul 1,451.67 1,355.63
3,438.30 6,430,92
Tmpairment Allowanee (aHowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtiid 1,451.67 1,355.63
1,451.67 1,355.63
Total 1,986.63 5,075.29

(i)

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jomtly with any other person. Nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is o partner, a director or a member,

The interest frve credit pertod given to customers is upto 9U days

As At As At
Mareh 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Cash and cash cquivalents
Batance with banks
On current & cash eredit accounts 1,803.51 2,354.51
Deposits with origmal maturity of 3 months or less 6,784.00 179.98
Cash on hand 26.45 43.35
Totak 8,613.96 2,577.84
As Al
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Rs,

Other Bank balances other than (i) above
Deposits with remaining maturity for fess than 12 months 1,368.50 -

1,368.50 -




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated linancial statements for the year ended M

(iv) Other finnncial assets

Advancees recoverahle
Employee Advance
to related parues

- Others

Security deposits

Interest acerued on deposits with banks and others
Interest acerued on loan given to related parties

Other bank balances

Total

Break up of eurrent Anancial assets carried at mmortised cost

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Seeurity deposits
Advanees recoverable

Interest aceried on deposits with banks and others

Tnterest aeerued or foan given to related parties

Othier current assets

Unbilled revenue

Balance with statutory/ government authorities

Security deposit
Prepaid expenses

Total

As At
March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs

As At
March 31, 2020
_Rs in fakhs

1.97 147

- 029

1,093.69 805.10

33.25 38,68

69.49 50,56

- 81.65

- 1,198.40 97775

As AL
March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs

As At
March 31, 2020
Rs in Jakhs

1,986.63 5,075.29
,613.96 2,577.84
3325 38.68
1,095.66 806.86
69.49 50.56
- TT11,798.98 T s4922
- s AL As At

NMarch 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2020
Rs 1n Jakhs

38.70 -
1,077.03 1.177.87
- 2.80
417,95 34183
1,533.68 1,522.50




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Nofes to CenscHdated financhal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

12 Shure capital

Authorised Share Capital Equity shares

No. of shares Ry In lakhs
Asat April t, 2019 121,000,000 121,000.00
Increascidesrcase) during the year® 300,000 300,000.00
As ut Morch 31, 2020 121,300,000 12,130.00
Incroaschddovrease) during the vear® 14,530,000 1,435.00
As ut March 31, 2021 135 550,000 13,585.00

Preference shares Preference shares

Autherised Preference Share Copital
(Face Value of Rs. 100 cach) (Face Value of Rs, 10 cach)
No. of shares Rs [n lakhs No, of shares Rs I fakhs

As af April 1, 2049 1,000,000 1,060.00 HARD.000 1.149.00
tncreasel(dacrease) dusing the year - - - -
As al March 34, 2020 1,000,800 1.000.00 11,400,000 1,140.00
increased{decrense) during the year - -
As ut March 31, 2021 1,600,000 1,000.00 §1,400,000 1,140.00

+ During Current Year, Authorisod Equily Shase Capital has beca inereased consequent to amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private Limited with Flour Hotels
Private Limitedd, Further, during Peevious year, Authosised Equity Share Capital was increassd consequent to amafgamation of Meringne Hotels Private Limited with Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Terms/rights aftzched to cquity shares

The company has onty one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shases is entitted to one vote per share. In the cvent of fiquidation of the company, the holders of
cquity shares will be entitled to receive remining assets of the company, afler distribution of alf prefereatial amounts. The distribution will be m proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shascholders

tssued equity cupitaf

Equity shares of INR (8 cach issued, subseribed snd fully paid No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Asat April 1, 2019 59,286,253 592863
Essued during the vear® 23,611,439 2,310.65
As ul Maych 31, 2020 82,897,692 8,289.77
Issued during the year - -

As at March 31,2024 92,897,692 8,289.77

*During last year company has issued 12,265,439 shares on non cash consideration to Meringue Hotels Private Limtivd shatcholders on merger (Refer Note 40). Further, the Company has issued

1 13,46,000 Complusorily Convertible Preference Shaces of Rs. 10 cach which has bevn converted into 11346000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Details of sharcholders holding more than §% shares in the company
Asat Asat
Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Ne, of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shures of Rs. | cach fully paid up
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 43,311,609 52.25% 43,311,609 5225%
APG Strategic Real Estate Pool NV, 34,616,555 41.76% 34.616. 41.76%
Dandelion Hotels Private Limited¢Whotly Owned Subsidiary of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited) 4,969,528 3.99% 4,969,528 599%
Agpregate number of bonus share issued, shure issucd for consideration other than cush and shares bought back during the period of five years diately p ding the reporting date

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

No. of shares No, of shares
12,265,439 12,265,439

Equity shares allolted as fully paid, pursuant to amalgamations (Refer note 40)

o




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financhal stutements for the year ended March 31, 2021

13 Olher cquily

Sceritivs Premium T Reintals

As ol April 1, 2019 99,112.47
tnecease; On merger with Begonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels

Private Limited{refer note §0) 8.588.43

Increase/decrease) duing the vear
As at March 31, 2020
Inerease/idecrease) during the vear
As at March 31, 2021

Retained Earnings Rs in fakhs

As ot April 1, 2019 (1,821.38)
On amalgamation 20435

Profit for the year (3.108.67)
Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability crcated on acquisition of butangible Assets (Refer

Note 40) 556,40

Tmpact of bed AS 116 (336211
As at March 34, 2020 (7,83

Profit for the year 13,333

As at March 31,2021 21,066.62)

Qther component of equity Rs in lakhs

At April 2019 -

Inceease £ (Deccease) during the vear 1,450.12

At 31 March 2020 1,450.12

Inceease / (Docrease) during the year (49437)

At 31 March 2021 985,78

Capitol resene Rs. in lakhs

As ot Apri 1, 2019 R

Increasc/(deerease) during the year (1,205.02)

As at March 3, 2020 (1,205.02)

Increasefdecrease) during the vear

As ut March 31, 2021 (710.65)

Pref Share Capital-cquily Rs. in Jakhs

Asat April 1, 2019 83.58

Increase/ideceease) dusing the year -

As af Mareh 31, 2020 43.58

Increase/{decrease) during the year 537.63

As at March 31, 2021 621.21

Ay at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Other reserves

Securities Premium 165,539.11 148,601.94
Retained Earnings (21,066.62) (7.531.40)
Prefecence Share Capital-cquity component 62121 83.58
Other component of equity 955,78 1.450.12
Capita) resenve (710.65) (1,205.02)
Total 145,338.80 141,399.22

Secarilics premium: Securities premium comprises premium seceived on isswe of shares,

Retained earnings: Retained carnings comprise talances of profit and loss at each year end.

Capital Rescrve: Capilal Reserve Aveount: Capital resteve aceount is revorded as difference between share capital issued and the amount of share capital of the transfesor.

T Share Cupital-cquity comp P P of equity of 3% reedemable non cummulative Preference share Captial and equity component of Compulsary Convertible Preference

shares issusd to APG,




Fleur Hatels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financiu statements far the year ended March 31, 2021

Bt TTAvu T Asw
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
_ Ryinlukhy  Rsinlakh
(i} Non-current horeowings
Term Louny
Indian rupee loans from Binks (Secured)
Axis Bank Limited (Refer nate 9, 22 to 24 below) 3244418 30.188.68
Kotak Mohindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 1o 4 below) 9.871.09 9.439.74
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 5. 8. 13 and 1710 20 below) 41,223.20 43,609.50
Indusind Bank Limited (Refer note 6, 7 and 10 below) 8,499.48 806541
Vehiele loans (Refer note 14 below) 210,09 28522
HDFC Bank Limited { Refer note 15 & 16 below) §,733.50 ENZERE
Rupre term loans from fimanein institutiens
Tourism Finance Corporation of india Limited ¢ Refer note 21 belony 6,55 720.00
Aditya Birda Finance Linuted (Refer note P& 12 befow) 13,019.99 12.6153 03
Liability component of compound finaneial imtrament
Convertible preference shares tunsecured) -
Convertible preference shates (umecuied)
Total non-current borrowings AT B8 10466932
Current horrowings
Term Loans
Current maturity of jong terny loans
Avis Bank Limited (Refer note 9. 22 10 24 below) 1,505.86 693,50
Fotah Mahinda Bank Linnted (Refer note 1o belowy 838,43 465
Yes bank Lunited (Refer note 3, 8. 13 and 17 10 20 below) 33711 101.258
findusind Bank Lamited (Refer note 67 1o below) 282,45 13500
Vehick: foans (Refer note 34 balow) 79.69 1740
HDFC Bunk Limited ¢ Refer note F5 & 10 veiow 312,33 20625
Rupee terntloans from financiul institutions
Touttsm Finanes Corporation of Tndia Limited ¢ Refer note 21 belowy 240,00 -
Aditva Bire Finance Limited (Refer note 11 ae 12 below) - 359.43
203032

Total current borrowings
Less. Amount elubbed under other cutrent fncial liabiles

Net current horrowings

(i) The Group has not defauited in the repayment of foans and mteiest as at Balance Sheet date
(ii) In terms ol Loan Agreement with fenders CGroup were 10 comply w ith certain covenants which were finked to the operational performance ¢.g. Net Debt1o
ITDA) and debt service corerage tatio (DSCR) ete, Dunng financial year COVID-19 had impacted the

carnings before interest. tax. depreciation and amortication (K

operations of Group which resulted in lower EBITDA and negative profit before tax and as a consegnence those covenants could not be met. The Group has taken
watver of these covenants Irom all its lenders. The Group has comphied with all other financial covenants naniely debt-to-cyuity ratio and fixed assel coverage ratio
(FACR) el
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consofithited finuncial vatements for the se

(il) Other financial Tiabiities
Securily deposits

Total

15 Provisiom

Provisinn for gratuity (refer note 35)
Current
Nou-curtent

Provivion tur feave beaetits

Current

Non il

Provision for litigations (Refer note 34(e))
Current
Non-current

Total current
Total nun-current

e ended Mareh 51, 2021

»_. Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

. s in lakhs Rs in lakhs

649.21 576.56

Asut T s
Nsreh 3, 2021 March 31, 2020
Ry in takhs Rs in lakhs

o 146.99 100.64
IR.68 3278
108,31 G7.86

Asal
March 31. 2020
___Reinlakhs
116.08
116 08

March 31, 2020

____Rsinlakhy Rs in Jakhs

March 31,2021

- 3.23 §0.14
v3.23 K014

252.38
10831

<
/
%

%




Ileur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Bnancial stitements for the year ended March 31, 2021

16 Deferrved tax Habilities (net) As at As ot
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets 10,814.25 6,775.21
Borrowins cost 13.73 10.97
Security deposits 300.78 281.68
Revaluation of land 6,684.88 2,444.91
Deferred tax hability 17,813.64 951277
Impact of expenditure churged to the statement of profit and loss 1in 38.29 84.71
the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes on payment
basis
Interest on loan 288,75 -
Provision for bonus 8,76 -
Proviston for doubtful debts and advances §7.03 56.70
Right to ase asset/lease labihty 1,226.92 613.78
MAT credit entitlemen 1,321.99 373.18
Provision for Expected credit loss - 533
Eftect of unabsorbed depreciation and business foss 13,938.14 5,621.01
Provision for gratuity 34,42 14.51
Proviston for feave compensation 35.83 19.73
Non pioving inventory 1.52 1.52
Security deposits payable 451.88 4i2.84
Borrowings cost 14.59 8§99
Others 25.94 2229
Deferrved tax asset 17,444,006 7,234.65
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 369.58 2278.12

Reconcilintion of (ax expense and the accounting profil multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31,
2021 and March 31, 2020;

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit/(loss) before tax (15,408.02) (3,917.09)
Tax rate 25.17% - 27.82% 25.75% - 30.90%
Tax at statutory Incone lax rate (4,216.41) (1,648.32)
Eifeet of meonmes taxable at nililower rate 109.67 40 96
Eftect of non-deductible expenses 3.07 1.05
Tax Effect of expenses’ ncome not allowed? 1equired to tax under {956.36) .16
Income lax charge/ (eredit) i respect of earlier year
Unrecogmized tax assets (net) 3,367.89 1,553.89
Other adjustments (204.60) 17.17

Net (1,896.74) (24.09)




Fleur Hotels Privi

¢ Limited

Notes to Consoligated fnancial statements for the year endded Mareh 31, 2021

17

=

Feave linbility ) Asat Asat
March 31,2021 Maich 31, 2020
 Rainkhs  Rew ks
Opuning balance RIRAREL] 2831178
Additions during the sear - 3.092.96
Deletion during the year 56.68 -
Interest accrued during the year 3,123.42 2.996.18
Payment of lease liabilitics o 2,650.69 245844
Closing balance 32,358.56 31,942.48
Current - -
Non-Current 32,358.56 3194248
Othier Non-curreat ahilities Y VTR Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rsin lukhs Rs in lakhs
Lnamortised portion of sceurity deposits 1,978.32 2.119.63
E —
Tota 1,978.32 2.119.63

(This space hay been ttenttonaliy feft hlank}




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated finaneinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at
NMarch 31, 2021
Rs in lalkhs

19 Financial liabilities

As at
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

(i) Borrowings

Cash credit from banks (Secured)® 3,010.34 2,803.03
Loan from related party 736.50 4,103.00
Total 3,746.84 6,906.03

A #The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank
way of:

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current

is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.50% to 10.55%% p.a. and is secured by

assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and

b) First charge on all present & future immovable fixed assets(80% portion of undivided part of land) of the Lemon Tree Premier

Andheri kusly Road, Mumbai

¢)First charge on all present & future movable fived assets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai

d) Corporate Guurantee of Lemon Tree [otels Limited

B *The Cash credit facility [rom Yes Bank isre savable on demand
) pa)
) First Charge on the current assets (Present & Future) of the company

capital facility

and carries interest rate of 9.10% and is secured by way of:
(excluding project assets of Vizag Hotel) to secure the working

As at
Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2020
Rs in lukhs

(i)

Trade payables

Trade Payabies

“Micro and small enterprises 199.52 144,91
“Other than Micro and small enterprises 8,195.67 7.841.99
Total 8,395.19 7,986.90
(iti) Other financial liabilities
Current maiuritics of fong-tenm borrowmgs 6,630.47 2,030.32
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 175,60 888.48
STP Liability 235.00 235.00
EPCG Liability 318.40 937.07
Book overdraft 184.95 758.80
-Payable for capital poods 2,661.98 492745
-Sundry Deposits 46.44 4331
Outstanding dues of other creditors 310.18 724.80
Total 10,563.02 10,545.23
As at Asat

Other current liabilities

20

March 31, 2021
Rs in lalkhs

March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

Advance {rom customers 747.40 523.49
Unamortised portion of security deposits 141.31 141.31
Statutory Dues 369.44 920.74
Total 1,258.15 1,585.54




11 Revenue Trom operatiom

Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidited financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021

Revenue from pperativny

Sale of products and seryices

- Room rental

- Food and beverage (excluding Hiquor and wine)

- Liquor and wing

- Banquet rentals

- Telephone and teles

_Other Serviees (including service charge income)

Other Operating Revenue
Management fee
- Commission income

Revenue from ope

19
=

Other Income

Fxcess provision written back
Waiver ol enl

License fees received

Rem received

Sale of License

Exchange difference (et
Miscellancous meome

Fotal

Cost o fond sond beveriges comuned

{2) Consumption of fooit & beverages eveluding liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the yeas
Add: Purchases

Less Inventory at the end of the year
Cust of Toeod and beverage consumed

(b) Consumption of liquor & wine
{iventory at the begmning of the year
Add: Purchases

{.ess Inventory at the end ol the vear

Cost of iguor and wine consumed

~
pad

Empioyee henefit expense

Salaries. wages and bonus
Contibution to provident fund and othet funds
StaiT welfare expenses

Total

March 31, 2024

U Ryindabhs

13,952,087
2,381.66
162.24
30.67
1.38
GALI8

110,50
e 1O
T 1187986

or the yenr cnded

March 31,2020

Remlokbs

29.826.23
6.284.78
955 88
195.89
748
272757

8630
207

THOL0RG.20

For lh‘l:.\L.\l ernded
Miirch 3§, 2021
Ry in fikiis

5.0
42469
i51.13
1087
1.31
006
69,74

Marceh 31,2021
__Ryinlakhy

The year cnded
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

043
451,13
24.33
44,46

I08IR

Mareh 31
Rs in |

2020

134.85 74.01

1,162.88 3.352.00

1,297.73 3.426.01

. 86 134.85
: Traisyr 32916,
105,23 BI99

41.10 33847

146.33 42246

102,15 105.23

S YT S 1V X0
1,260.15 3.608.40

mj;;rr the ,\u;u"numl Ak‘l-‘
March 31,2021
s in lakby

3,531.06
293.95
186,68

or the year ended

March 31, 2020
_Rs inlakhs

6.885.35
50048
636.08

802191




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consalidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 33, pib3%

25 Other Expensey For the year ended For the year ended

Reimbursement of ProfivLoss

Maeh 31, 2028
s in ikhs

March 31, 2020
Rs 1 lakhs

334.13

Consumption of stores. cntlery. crockery. finen. prov isions and others 58495
Power and fucl 2,109.91 352183
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 164,35 473.30
CGest transposlation 64.69 SRR.0S
Spinexpenses 3.69 1R0.76
Subseription < ges 55,29 100,27
Repair and maintenance
- Buldmgs RERDS 25985

Pl and machineny RO 54027
- Others 188.27 46335
Rent 148,04 239.04
Rates and tanes YTLHY 868.68
Insurance 118,54 1e0.14
Communieation costs 152.21 370
Printing and stationery 49.93 156.57
Traveling and conveyanee 2093 78.21
Vehicle running and mamtenance 43,00 80.36
Advertisement and business promotion 568,38 1.368.80
Manapement fees 846.50 2.024.57
Commission -other than sole selling apent R67.69 166935
Security and cleaning expeuses 186.77 03830
Membership and subscriptions 15.73 14,82
Lepal and professtonal fees 22000 295 14
Advances witlen of)’ .01
Water and sewerage charges 064 47.61
Freight and cartag (48 384
Exchange difference (rety - 0.56
Donations 1045 046
Postage & Courier 067
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment - T
Provision lor doubtful debis 9604 266.86
Pasment to auditor” 13.00 33.00
Miscellancous expenses 49,17 149.53
Total 7,708.73 15.057.88
Paymeat {o suditor?
For Stanitors auddt RRRIIH 23.00
For Tay auli 200
For Other serwes o RA0 .

13.00

Betuils of CSR expenditure:

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2021
Ry in lakhs

For the year cnded R
March 31. 2020
Rs wn fakhs

() Gross amount required (o be spent by the group during the year 942 5.82
Yet to be paid in cash Totul
() Amount spent during the year ending on 3Est March, 2021
) Constructionfacquisition of any asset -
iy On purposes other than (1) aboye 9.42
Yet 1o be paid in cash Total

(€) Amount spent during the yeur ending on 35 Murch, 2020
B Constructionfac quisition ol any assct
i On purposes other thas (1) above

26 Depreciation und amortiztion expense

For the yeur ended
March 31, 2021
Ry in Jakhs

for the year cnded
March 31. 2020
Rs in lakhs

Depreciation of tangible asscts 697592 5.382.88
Amortization of intangible assets 6H.02 61.61
1,285.37 1.188.42

Depreciation of right 10 use assel

Totat

H331




Fleur Hotels Private Linited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the yeir ended March 31 023

or the year ended [For the year ended
Mareh 31, 202 March 31, 2020
Rainlakhs ihs

27 Finanee cozts

Imerest

- on term Joans lhom banks 2,685.10 780887

- on loans from others 1,254.88 a21.74

-on vehicle loans 3392 1248
- 0.27

- ohincome an

- on othets 70.22
- on Lease Liabiiny 2,522.82 233102
Bank charges (ncleding commission on credit card collection) 96.22 26383
Totat T 1366826 10,808,355
28 Finanee income vor the yeur ended for the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

inlakhs

. Rsin tukhy

Profit on suke of s esent 040 20458
tnterest Income on

~Bank Deposits 16582 5199
~terest on income ta refund BT 004
Others 11953 )
Tatal — 62446 369.53

-

{(Lossy/Earninps pes share (Bunic and Diluted)

Basic EPS amonnts are caleniated by dividing the profit for the perivdAcar atribytuble to eguity holders of the parent by the weighted average nmnber
of cquity shares outstanding dunng the pericdfyeas

Pilted EPS amounts are caleufated by dividing the profivattributable 1o cquin Bolders of the parent by the weiphted average number of cquity shares
outstanding drnwp the peroafear phis the wenghted average number of equiy shares that would he wseed an comsersion of al the dilutive potential
cquiey shares inlo vquity shares

Fhe toss)earnings and v eighied merape mmmba ol ordmary shaies ased i the caleudition of Base and Ditated EPS are as

ended 3
March 31, 2021 March 11, 2020
(Loss) Profil atnbatable 1o cquity folders (for basic and diluted) (13,511.28) (3.100.43)
Waeighted average number of equity Shares (ior basic and dituted carnings par shaie)” 62,382,835 62382833
Basic and Diluted (Joss¥eammps per share (21.66) “.97)

“"The weighted average number of sharcs takes inlo account e weighted average eNect of changes in share transactions durinp the year. There have
been 1o other transactions imvolving equily shares or potential equity shares betwesn the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial

statenients
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1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) is a
private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Asset No. 6,
Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037.

The Company, its subsidiarics and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The
Group™) intend to carry out business of developing, owning, acquiring, renovating and
promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, ete. under the brand name of Lemon Tree Hotel,
Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel, Aurika, Keys Lite, Keys Prima and Keys Select.

The consolidated financial statements arc approved for issue by the Board of directors on June
15,2021,

Basis of preparation
Significant aceounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 ('the Act') (1o the extent notified) The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafier.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 36).

Accounting policics have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision (o an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company its
subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The Group™) as at 31
March 2021. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

e  Exposure, or rights. to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to usc its power over the investee (o affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of

the holdings of the other voting rights holders
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(b)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to onc or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary,

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.c., year ended on 31 March,

On transition (o IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 in the consolidated financial
statements, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property plant and equipment.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. FFor this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup asscts and habilities, equily, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind ASI2 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including deemed acquisition/ deemed
disposal), without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it:

o Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

o Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

o Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

o Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit
or loss or refained carnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group clects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind
AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

o Assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

o Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Sy it
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with Ind AS 18 Revenue.

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferved, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equily as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to cach of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purposc of trading

o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months afler the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Hability is current when:

o ] is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilitics as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
statements are presented. FFunctional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary. items

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
% &
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use for each case.

when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss arc also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Group measures {inancial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
Hability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after

discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs.te-
e “i

7
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Al each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of cach asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 31)
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

Revenue recognition

The Group apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue {rom Contracts with Customers” which establishes a
comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Group has applied the guidance in
Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinet performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Group has measured
the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone
selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best
evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VA'TYGoods & Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Group on
its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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Rooms, Restaurant, Banquels and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
billed as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the puests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /

VAT/GST.
Interest income

IFor all financial instruments measured al amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
elfective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income stalement,

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.
Variable income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant

agreement.

Taxes

Taxes comprises current income tax and deferred tax

Current income {ax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never

taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax repulations arc subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax asscts are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax Josses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

s When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
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Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCV/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales/ value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assels or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid,

except:

o When the fax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
ol the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule [l of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
V (SLM)

Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Building e 60 Years/leased life
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Vehicles N 8 Years
Computers 3 Years
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and mecthods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of'its
Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful lifc.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective

basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation ol borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
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cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

Leases

The Group assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether:

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and

(3) The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Group as a lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for
the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right-of-use assets are tested {or impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the
Jease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole.
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a
purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed leasc payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these Jow value leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating
leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
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Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows afier the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be

justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for

the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assef’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment Joss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assels are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent habilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.

Contingent liubilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair
value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised in accordance with the requirements
for revenue recognition.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already

paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
thL balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre- payment
wlll lcad to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. -
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Retirement benefit in the form of gratuily is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
exciuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance shect with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benelits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Group treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
seftlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
[nitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subscquent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories;

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

° Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10.

Debt instrument at FVTOC/

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and seling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the

J;
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asset, cumulative pain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FF'VTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Lguiny investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derccognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

e 'The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation fo pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Group follows *simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
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recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
_income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&IL.. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

e Iinancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Sl(bS@([ll€)7/ medsurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
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purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Scparated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L.. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of a debt instrument held by the entity, it should
not be accounted for separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of threc months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurementi of EBITDA

The Group has elected to present carnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the stalement of profit and loss. The Group
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations, In its
measurement, the Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, interest
income, finance costs and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash Nows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Common Control business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations involving entities or businesses under common
control using the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts. 'The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in
the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the
financial statements of the transferor, The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as
share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve Account and is
presented separately as Common Control Transactions Capital Reserve Account.

In terms of the scheme the amalgamation has been accounted for in accordance with the pooling
of Interest Method. As per said scheme, the financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior period has been restated w.e.f the appointed date as if business combination
occuired from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of
the actual date of the combination.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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31 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Estimation of Uneertainties related to global health pandemic on COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and continues to impact major economic and financial markets around
the world. Regular business operations in many countries, have been severely disrupted due to lockdown,
travel bans, quarantines and other emergency measures. With respect to operations of the Group, it has
impacted its business by way of reduction in occupancy of hotels and average realization rate per room starting
from the month of March 2020 and management has undertaken/is undertaking various cost savings
initiatives to conserve cash coupled with the capital infusion amounting to Rs 175 crores in the
form of Compulsorily convertible preference shares. During the month of March 31, 2021, 23 out
of 24 hotels were operational at 41% occupancy rate. Management believes that the easing of
lockdown in India including flight operations and expected increase in business travel would be
beneficial for the Group.

[n evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on its ability to continue as a going concern and the possible impact
on its financial position, the management has assessed the impact of macro-economic conditions on its
business and the carrying value of its major assets comprising of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and
trade receivables as at the balance sheet date. In this regard, the Management has carefully considered the
circumstances and risk exposures arising from the COVID-19 situation for developing estimates on the
basis of all available information in its asscssment of impact thereof on its financial reporting.

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE, the Group has used significant assumptions such as hotel
occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, terminal growth rate and weighted average cost of capital, The
Group appointed independent valuer to assess fair values of significant hotel properties owned independently,
which covered approximately 66% of value of PPE of the Group. Specifically for investments, the
Management has considered (i) the industry in which the investee entity operates (ii) The
geographic location of the investee entity (iii) The size of the investee entity (iv) the quantitative
significance of the investee entity (v) liquidity risk premiums (vi) appropriateness of valuation
techniques and inputs uscd including current market assessment of credit risk and liquidity risk
and (vii) other factors specific to the investee entity. For assessing the recoverable amount of trade
receivables, the Group has calculated the expected credit loss from the trade receivables considering amount to be
realized from them in future after factoring the impact on credit risk due to COVID-19.

Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that the Group will continue as a going concern and
will be able fo meet all of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of its aforesaid assets as on
March 31, 2021.

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from
COVID- 19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. The associated economic impact of
the pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict. The impact assessment of
COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and
actual results may differ materially from these estimates. The Group will continue to monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in
the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise.
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Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
1. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable assct that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel propertics, hence identified as cash generating units. The Group assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Group used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins,
growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as

follows:

Particulars As at March 31,2021
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 12.00% *
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00%

*Equivalent 9.6% post tax rate of WACC,

As al March 31, 2021, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and
the change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-
19 is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

2. Leases

The Group has taken certain land and land & building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Group
is reasonably certain fo exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to excrcise the option to terminate the lease. The Group
evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Group uses judgement in assessing the lease term and
the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.

3, Loss Allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Group’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered the likelihood of
consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2021 is considered adequate.

4. Impairment of Goodwill

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset as it benefits from the synergies of the acquisition, hence
identified as cash generating unit (CGU). Goodwill recognized on business combination is tested for
impairment on annual basis or whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of CGU is
less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on higher of
value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The calculation of value in use of a CGU involves use
of significant assumptions including future economic and market conditions.
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32. Group information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiarics and Limited liability partnership listed
in the table below:

Subsidiaries/1.LP under Direct Control

Prineipal

Country of

% of equity interest

S. No. | Name of the Company Activities Iucorporation Mavreh 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
l. Celsia Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%
2. Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited | Hotel Business India 100% 100%
3. IORA Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%*
4, Ophrys Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%
S, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%
6. Bandhav Resorts Private Limited | Hotel Business India 100% 100%
7. Mezereon Hotels LLP Hotel Business India 99.99% 99.99%
8. Berggruen Hotels Private Hotel Business 100.00% 100.00%
Limited India

*Change in percentage in previous year as Begonia Holels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private
Limited has been merged with appointed date April 1,2019
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The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement
age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an
equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has
taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Group makes
provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per
the Projected unit credit method.

Benefit Liability March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gratuity plan 146.99 100.64
Total 146.99 100.64

Risk analysis
Group is exposed to a number.of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:
e Investment risk
The most of the Indian defined benefit plans arc funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Group does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Government of India bonds for Group’s Indian operations. If the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
e Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.
e Longevity risk/life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. Increases in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
e Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes {o consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the tolal plan assets

are as follows:

March 31,

March 31,

2021 2020
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

Group’s plans are shown below:

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Discount rate:

Pension plan 5.60%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years
Pension pian

Male 60
Female 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 3

India gratuity plan:

5.83%

5.00%
Years
60
60

1, 2021 is as shown below:

Rs in lakhs

March 31,
2021

March 31,
2021

March 31,
2021

March 31,
2021

Assumptions Discount rafe

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

(6.15) 7.03

Future salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

7.01

(6.65)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statementis for the

vear ended March 31, 2021

Rs in lakhs

March 31, Mareh 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2020 2020 2020
Assumptions Discount rate Futare salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit 7 W -
obligation 64.01 (75.72) 74.17 (65.38)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Duration (Years) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
] 46.10 33.94
2 40.60 30.39
3 33.10 27.75
4 30.00 22.98
5 22.10 20.41
Above 5 55.10 53.82
Total expected payments 227.00 189,29

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 3.66 years

(March 31, 2020: 4.3 years).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended Mavch 31, 2021

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally cancellable and
are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease for hotel properties are non-cancellable
for a period of twenty three to twenty nine years.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, with lease terms between twenty three
twenty five and twenty nine years.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all Lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted atf the incremental borrowing rate and the
right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard has been applied since the commencement date of
the lease, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Comparatives as at March 31, 2019 and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included in the audited
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019,

Group as a lessee;

For transition, the Company has assessed whether the contract is, or contains, the lease. The Company has
elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 to leases for which the underlying asset is of low value
on a lease-by-lease basis and the leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial
application. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
The Company has applied its incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at

the date of initial application.

The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities, as at April 1,2019 is 9.72%.

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments as at April 1, 2019. The right-of-use asset is recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as at April 1, 2019. Accordingly, a right-of-use asset of Rs. 20,218.93 lakhs and a corresponding lease
liability of Rs. 16,635.82 lakhs has been recognized. The cumulative effect on transition in retained earnings
net of taxes is Rs. 5010.24 lakhs (including a deferred tax of Rs. 321.44 lakhs). On application of Ind AS 116,
the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use
asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability,




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finanecial statements for ihe yvear ended March 31, 2021

The impact of Ind AS 116 as at 1st April 2019 on the balance sheet line items is as follows:

As at April 1, 2019 Ind AS 116
Particulars (Before Ind AS 116) Adjustments As af April 1, 2019

Assets
Non-current assets

Right of use assets - 23,070.62 23,070.62

Capital work in progress 2,077.70 (520.10) 1,557.60

Deferred tax assets (net) - 321.44 321.44
Total Assets 207770 22,871.96 24,949.66
Equity and Liabilities

Other Equity - (3,362.11) (3,362.11)
Non-Current
Financial liabilities

Lease Liabilities - 28,311.77 28,311.77

Other current liabilities 2077.70 (2077.70) -
Total Kquity and Liabilities | 2,077.70 22,871.96 24,949.60

b. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining fo be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2021 Rs. 8,203.20
lakhs (March 31,2020 Rs. 3,086.61 lakhs)

c. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal claim contingency
Rs. in lakhs

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a. [Counter guarantces issued in respect of guarantees

issued by company’s bankers ) 1,251.35 1,645.56
Service Tax 176.27 176,27
¢. ncome Tax - 16.40

The Group’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Sales/VAT tax and
other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its
financial statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially
adverse effect on its financial statements,




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(ii) During the earlier years, the Ultimate Holding Company and one of the subsidiary company, Hyacinth Hotels
Private Limited(collectively known as “Companies”) had received a show cause notice dated April 25, 2014
from Collector of Stamps, Delhi (‘Department’), wherein the department was of the view that prima facie the
companies has not paid stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to use the land given by Delhi
International Airport (P) Ltd. (DIAL) under the Development Agreement dated May 25, 2009 (‘DA”). The
Companies contested the matter and the Department pursuant 1o the response received from all the developers
of area where the Companies project is located. and arguments thercon, passed a common order on July 14,
2014 (“Order”) and subsequently, the Companies and its directors received show cause notice dated August
14, 2014 from the Department as to why criminal prosecution for non- payment of requisite stamp duty
should not be initiated against them. The Company along with certain other developers had filed a writ
petition before the Honorable High Court of Delhi (HC) and the HC vide its order dated August 25, 2014 has
granted ex- parte interim stay from all proceedings under the Order including the said show cause notice dated
August 14, 2014, Further, the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated January 18, 2019,
has allowed the Petition and has quashed the Show Cause Notice dated April 25, 2014 and the Impugned
Order dated July 14, 2014 and the show cause Notices dated August 14, 2014 and disposed the matter,

(i) During the earlier years, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, one of the subsidiary company, has taken land on
lease from Delhi International Airport (P) Lid. (DIAL) for which South Delhi Municipal Corporation (‘the
Authority’) has raised demand of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013~
2014) towards annual value in respect of the hotel property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity.
Considering that the arca occupied by the Company is 59% of the hotel property. it has made provision of Rs.
93,23 lakhs (Refer note 15) in this regard.

(iv) During the Financial Year, Meringue Hotels Private Limited (now amalgamated with Fleur Hotels Private
Limited) has amicably settled pending matter pertaining to show cause notice received under Employee State
Insurance, Act, 1948 (“ESIC Act™) for recovery of Rs. 2.16 Million vide notice dated October 2015 and
agreed to make outstanding dues of Rs.11,97,142/- to ESIC. The Employees Insurance Court, Mumbai, vide
order dated February 13, 2020, disposed of the matter as settled between the parties.

(v) Berggruen Hotels Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has entered into a lease agreement in April, 2008
with the land owners of the Baroda property to construct a hotel in the said property pursuant to whichsum of
Rs. 100 Lakhs has been paid to the property owners as refundable security deposit. As per the Lease
agreement, on execution of the said Lease Deed, owners were obliged to deliver to the Company, vacant and
peaceful possession of the said property and to demolish existing structure standing thereon in order to enable
the Subsidiary Company to construct the proposed hotel on the said property. More than five years have
elapsed since execution of the said Lease Deed and despite various assurances and promises, the owners have
failed to hand over possession of the said property and hence the Subsidiary Company terminated the lease
agreement and asked immediately to refund the refundable security deposit alongwith interest at the rate of
25% per annum. Subsequent to termination of the lease agreement, the Subsidiary Company has also filed the
case against owners for recovery of monies paid to them alongwith the interest. The Subsidiary Company
expects the judgment in its favour.

(vi) The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any
material foreseeable losses.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes {o consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

d. Note on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, company is not required to create provisions in
books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of Vivekananda
Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (11), West Bengal and subsequent dismissal
of review petition by Hon'ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No. 001972-001973/2019 in
civil appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni L.td Vs Employees Provident Fund and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can be
done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective ecffect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades.

Note on Social Security

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes”) relating to employee
compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent have not been notified.
Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have not been notified. The Company
will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are notified and will record any related impact in
the period in which the Codes become cffective.

Sub Lease

The license fee recognised as income during the year for non-cancellable arrangements relating to provision
for sub lease of Hotel as per the agreements is Rs.205.18 lakhs and Rs. 194.49 lakhs for the year ended March
31,2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively.

Parficular As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Future minimum lease payment receivable

Not later than one year 21647 205.18

Later than one year but not later than {ive years 991.66 939.97

Later than five years 3,685.01 3,953.18

Total 4,893.15 5,098.33
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Names of related parties
Holding company

Fellow subsidiary companies

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (Managing Director,
Whole time director, manager and other managerial
personnel) of Subsidiaries

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Begonia Hotels Private Limited (Merged with Fleur
Hotels Private Limited with appointed date April 1,
2019)

- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (Merged with Fleur
Hotels Private Limited with appointed date April 1,
2019)

- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

- Canary Hotels Private limited

- Carnation Hotels Private Limited

- Hamstede Living Private Limited (As at March 31,
2021)

-Mr.  Patanjali  Govind Keswani (Chairman &
Managing Director)
-Mr.Niten Malhan(Independent Director) (w.e.f, 6"
November, 2020)
-Mr. Rattan Keswani(Director)
-Mr. Dominic James Doran(Director)
-Mr.  Anish  Kumar Saraf (Director) (upto 29"
May,2020)
-Mr. Brian Lap Hei Hung (Director) (Upto

August 09, 2019)
-Mr. Paramartha Saikia( Independent Director)
-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)
-Mr.  Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent
Director) (w.e.f. April 11, 2019)
-Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Additional Independent Director)
(w.e.f. August 07, 2019)

-Mr. ‘Sumant Jaidka (Whole Time Director of Inovoa
Hotels and Resorts Limited)

-Ms. Anshu Sarin (Whole Time Director & CEO of
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited)

-Ms. Natasha Yashpal (Whole Time Director of lora
Hotels Private Limited)

-Mr.  Rajeev Janveja (Whole Time Director of
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited which has been
merged with Fleur Hotels Private Limited)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited
-Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

-Hamstede Living Private Limited (Upto March 30,
2021)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Additional related partics as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:
Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Inder Pal Batra

Company Sccretary : Ms. Pooja Bakshi (upto May 25, 2020)

: Ms. Sonali Manchanda (w.e.f May 29, 2020)
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Fleuyr Hotels Privaie Limited
Notes to consolidaied financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related partics at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by rclated parties (March 31, 2020: Rs Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Group has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

36. Fair value measurement

a. KFinancial assets

Rs. in lakhs

viarch 31,2021 March 31, 2020
FVIPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 1,986.63 - 5,075.29
[nvestiments
0.41 - 1,000.30 -
Security Deposits ) 4,851.78 - 4.490.62
Other bank balances i 2.148.25 - 744 67
Cash and Cash )
Equivalents 8,613.96 2,577.83
Loans and ) ) i 1.730.00
Advances
Interest accrued on
R H Al C =
dcpomt with banks . 509.87 542.57
and others
Other amount 1,095.65 i 764.20
recoverable -
Total Financial 0.41 19,206.14 1,000.30 15,925.18
Assets
b. Financial labilities
Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amortised Amortised
VP Vi
FVTPIL. Cos FVTPL Cost
Borrowings 121,825.39 - 117,321.65
Trade Payables - 8,395.19 - 7,986.78
Other Financial 4,581.77 . 12,187.10
Liabilities
o - 32,358.56 - 31,942.48
Lease Liabilities
Fotal Financial 167,127.91 . 169,438.01
Liabilities




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,

The Group categorizes usscts and liabilitics measured at fair value info one of three levels depending on
the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Levell

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

iiy Level 2
Inputs are inputs that are observable, cither directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3
[nputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

March 31,2021

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FVTPL

March 31, 2020
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FVTPL

The management assesscd that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and other
current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities

of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the investment in mutual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the
assets at each reporting date

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of thesc financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to support its
operations., The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks, The Group's senior management is supported by a financial risk
committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as
below:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in markel prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
Group is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Group expects the variable rate to
decline, accordingly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates,

Rs. In lakhs

March 31,

2021 March 31, 2020

Variable rate borrowings 121,295.61 115,056.61
Fixed rate borrowings 289.78 306.98




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on
profit
before tax

Increase/decrease
in basis points

Rs. In lakhs

Mareh 31, 2021

INR 50 (640.93)

INR -50 640.93
WMiarch 31, 2020

INR 50| (51628

INR -50 516.28

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of

number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Group does not hold collateral as security.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statementis for the year ended March 31, 2021

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by
the Group's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties
credit limits assigned (o each counterparty. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for tl
components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and M

in Note 10,

the Group's treasury department in accordance with

Rs. in lakhs

Ageing March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Not duc - -
0-60 days past due 964.73 4,287.33
61-120 days past due 23961 465.53
121-180 days past due 237.81 114.26
180-365 days past due 232.65 74.62
more than 365 days 311.83 133.55

Provision for doubtful debis (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs

Ageing

March 31,

March 31,

2021 2020
Not duc
0-60 days past due 1.63 8.82
61-120 days past due .87 -
121-180 days past due 5.98 -
180-365 days past due 17.38 30.73
more than 365 days 1,424.81 1316.08

Reconeiliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables
(including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. In lakhs

—

March 31,

March 31,

2020 | 2020
| Provision at beginning | 135563 40.45
Addition during the year 196.04 1,315.18
Reversal during the year 100.00 -
Utilised during the year - -
Provision at closing 1,451.67 1,355.63

arch 2020 is the carrying amount as disclosed




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes fo consolidaied financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits (including provision for

expected credit loss)

March 31, Mareh 31,
2021 2020
Provision at beginning 8.75 8.75
Addition during the year -
Reversal during the year - -
Utilised during the year 8.75 -
Provision at closing - 8.75

Liquidity rislk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access fo a sufficient variety of
sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. As at
March 31, 2021, the group had available Rs. 3,563 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1,700 lakhs) of undrawn

committed borrowing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Rs.in lakhs

Less (hm; 3 Jto 12

On demand I to § years > 5 years Total
months months

Year ended 7 ) -
March 31, 2021
Borro“/ings 3,746.84 871.72 5,735.04 40,238.22 71,233.58 121,825.39
Trade and other 8.395.19 i i i i 8.359.19
payables
O.the'r .F.mancnal 4,581.77 i i i ) 4,581.77
Liabilities

16,723.80 871 .72 5,735.047 B 40,238.22 71,233.58 134,766.35
Year ended
March 31, 2020
Borrowings 8,636.03 - 3,335.05 29,253.01 79,111.58 120,335.67
Trade and other 7.986.83 i ) i i 7.986.83
payables
Other Financial 11,976.10 . i i : 11,976.10
Liabilities -

28,598.96 - ' 3,335.05 29,253.01 79,111.58 140,298.60




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 as
on undiscounted basis

Particulars n As at As at
i ~_March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year o 2,821.35 2,690.74
Later than one year but not later than five yczirs ' k12,40558 11,992.92
Later than five years 68,036.43 71,010.67
Total _ ~ 83,263.95 85,694.32

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximisc the sharcholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in lakhs

‘Mareh 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Borrowings (Note 15) 121,825.39 120,335.67
Trade payables (Note 20) 8,395.19 7,986.78
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 8,613.96 2,577.83
Net debt 121,606.62 125,744.62
Tolal capital 153,628.57 143,679.71
Capital and net debt 27523519 279,424.33
Gearing ratio 44% 45%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements,

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mavreh 31, 2021

39. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Dircctors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Group as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Group as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 - “Operating Segments”™.

Information about geographical areas

The Group has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Group as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers
No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
40. Business Combination — Pooling of Interest Method
a) Amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the order of
scheme of amalgamation dated March 22, 2021 in respect of amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private
Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels Private
Limited (the Company) and the scheme was effective from March 31, 2021, The Appointed date is April
01, 2019.The Company has made allotment of 95,57.461 equity shares to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company on April 20, 2021 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets,
liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been taken over at their
carrying values. This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of
interest method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone

financial statements of the Transferor Company.

Proportion of voting
equity interest Consideration transferred
acquired
Begonia Hotels Hotel Business April 1, 2019 100% 1,46,45,682 shares of the
Private Limited Begonia  Hotels  Private
Limited before
amalgamation stands
cancelled and 41,25,544
number of shares has been
issued to the shareholders
of Begonia Hotels Private
Limited for consideration
other than cash,

Nightingale Hotel Business April 1,2019 100% 13,03,66,000 shares of the
Hotels Private Nightingale Hotels Private
Limited . Limited before
amalgamation stands
cancelled and 54,31,917
number of shares had been
issued to the shareholders
of  Nightingale  Hotels
Private Limited for
consideration other than
cash.

Name of the Principal Date of
Company Activity Acquisition

ww«ﬂ'“‘w%
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The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as af April 1, 2019 ave as follows:

Rs. in lakhs

Begonia Hotels Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited Private Limited

Particulars Value of asset as on | Value of asset as on
April 1,2019 April 1,2019

Assets

Property, plant and equipment(including 1,567.95 9,014.07

intangible asscts)

Financial assets-Non Current 2,301.10 1,154.56

Other Non-Current Assets 46.02 90.33

Inventories 13.67 21.42

Financial assets-Current 793.92 1,202.95

Other Current Assets 75.28 56.03

Total Assets 4,797.95 11,539.36

Liabilities

Borrowings 25.64 4,947.42

Other financial liabilities 373.67 570.97

Provisions 5.77 11.56

Other current labilities 65.87 55.95

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 37.60 -

Total Liabilities 508.54 5,585.89

Other equity 4,142.92 4,649.85

Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private 412.55 543.19

Limited issued as per the swap ratio to

shareholders of the Transferor Company.

Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April 1, (266.07) 760.43

2019

b) Amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited

During the year ended March 31. 2020, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the order of
scheme of amalgamation dated January 21, 2020 in respect of amalgamation of Meringue Hotels
Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and the
scheme was effective from January 1, 2020. The Appointed date is April 01, 2019.The Company has
made allotment of 12,265,439 equity shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company on
February 13, 2020 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets, liabilities and reserves
_of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been taken over at their carrying values. This
’ "«.t‘raiiksa‘g\\t‘ion has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of interest method and
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Notes to consolidated financial siatements for {he year ended March 31, 2021

maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone financial
statements of the Transferor Company.

2 e, by ‘
Date of Proportion of

Name of the Principal . voting equity Consideration

. . Acquisitio . ‘

Company Activity " interest transferred
acquired

Meringue Hotel April 1, 100% 2,152,209 shares of

Hotels Business 2019 the Meringue

Private Hotels Private

Limited Limited before

amalgamation
stands cancelled
and 12,265,439
number of shares
had been issued to
the shareholders of
Meringue  Hotels
Private Limited for
consideration other
than cash.

The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recopnized as at April 1, 2019 are as follows:
(Amownt in Rs, Lakhs)

Value of asset as on

Particulars April 1, 2019
Assets o
Property, plant and equipment(inciuding
capital work in progress) o 32,389.18
| Financialassets : _h2e127
Total Assets N ) 33,650.45
Liabilities -
| Borrowings ) ) ~19,811.08
Other financial liabilities 4,110.89
Provisions 7.71
Other current liabilities - o 15.16
Total Liabilities - B 23,944 .84
Other equity 9,684.09

Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited issued as per the swap ratio to
shareholders of the Transferor Company. 1,226.54
Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on
April 1, 2019

... 1,205.02
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41. On November I, 2019 i.e. effective date, Fleur Hotels Private Limited, the subsidiary company
of Lemon Trec Hotels Limited, acquired 100% of share capital of Berggruen Hotels Private
Limited engaged in the business of owing, operating and managing hotels and resorts The
business acquisition was conducted by cntering into a share purchase agreement for the total
net consideration (including other related expenses) of Rs. 49,504.16 Lacs paid to Berggruen
Investment, Mauritius (Seller) in cash.

The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired has been
attributed to goodwill and the goodwill is not tax deductible.

The excess of the purchase price has been allocated based on management estimates and
independent appraisal of fair value as follows:

Particulars Carrying value as on October Fair Value as on October
Articutars 31,2019 31, 2019
Property, plant &
I 19p01t), plant and 27.600.77 47.413.41
equipment
Right to use assets 1.360.91 1,360.91
Capital work-in- 13 313
progress
Intangible assets 1.70 1.70
Intangible assets —
management and - 1,900.00
franchised contract
Intangible assets -- brand - 100.00
Other non-current assets 742.59 742.59
Current assets* 2.618.78 2,618.78
Non-current liabilities (9.450.19) (9,451.52)
Current liabilities (5,083.38) (5,083.48)
Lease liability (3,044.08) (3,044.08)
Deferred Tax liability (2,223.28) (2,223.28)
Dg‘:ferre(.i lax ‘}l"db‘lllt)’ (556.00)
on intangible assets
Total 12,526.95 33,782.16
Purchase price 49,504.16
Goodwill 15,722.00

*Included cash and cash equivalents amounting Rs. 998.43 lakhs

The goodwill of Rs. 13.721.94 lakhs comprises value of expected synergies arising from the business
.~ combination,
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42. During the year under review, the Board of Dircctors of the Company have approved the Scheme
of Amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited (Transferor 1), Nightingale Hotels Private
Limited (Transferor 1) with Fleur Hotels Private Limited (Transferee Company). The scheme
has been electronically filed with National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi (NCLT). After
approval of the Scheme by NCLT, the Transferor companies shall be amalgamated in Fleur
Hotels Private Limited w.e.f April 1, 2019 (Appointed date of the Scheme).

43. During the earlicr year, the Company has entered into a sub-lease agreement (‘agreement’) with
Mumbai International Airport Private Limited (MIAL) for the right to operate, manage and develop
the hotel at Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport at Mumbai for initial term upto May 02, 2036,
extendable at the option of the Company for an additional period of 30 years. In terms of the
agreement, the Company has placed an interest free security deposit of Rs. 16,600 lakhs (March 31,
2020:-Rs. 16,600 lakhs) to secure the payment of annual lease and performance of all other
obligations under the agreement refundable upon transfer of possession of asset to MIAL at the expiry
of the agreement term.

44, The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to CGUS as follows:

Rs in lakhs

Particulars Amount
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 15,721.94
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited o 7673.42
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 4,698.68
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited 1,008.44
 Celsia Hotels Private Limited B 295004
Others 1.19
Total ) - o 2505441 ]

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels Private Limited as
a cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use caleulation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the dircctors beyond five year period and a pre-tax WACC rate

of 12% (2019-20: 12.5%) and terminal growth rate ol 5% (2019-20- 5.5%).
The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets were as follows:

1) Forecast sales growth rates: Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for
historic measures and market trends analyzed through independent valuer,

Operating profits: Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins,
iradjusted for the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving initiatives.
\\
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Notes to consolidated f'inanciulitut(}r}r]ents‘/i'or the year ended March 31,2021

Sensitivity analysis:

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for cach of the group of CGUs to which goodwill
is allocated. The Management believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount of Berggruen Hotels Privaie Limited, Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels Private Limited is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
related CGUs.

45, Details of dues to Micro, Small and Mediumn Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006,

Rs in lakhs

March 31, ‘March?],h
2021 2020

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 199.52 144.91 .
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Nil Nil
section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made (o the supplier beyond the appointed day
_during cach accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of Nil Nil
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

,,,,,, ]

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the Nil Nil
end of each accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable Nil Nil
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

46. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

2 o

/,7!” / p

Patanjali G. Keswani Inder Pal Batra

Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Sona]iz'Man(;handa
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
~ Date: June 15, 2021
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